
Page 1 of 3 

                                   
     Approved March 14, 2016         
                                                

VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF - FINANCE COMMITTEE 
MINUTES OF MEETING – February 12, 2016 

 
 
I. Call to Order – Roll Call 
 

The Finance Committee of the Village of Lake Bluff was called to order on Friday, February 
12, 2016 at 5:15 PM in the Village Hall Conference Room, 40 E. Center Ave., Lake Bluff, 
Illinois. 

 
Members Present: Trustee Steve Christensen, Chairman  
   Trustee Mark Dewart, Member 

   Trustee Barbara Ankenman, Member 
 

Others Present:        Kathleen O’Hara, Village Board President  
   William Meyer, Village Board Trustee 
   R. Drew Irvin, Village Administrator 
   Susan Griffin, Finance Director 
   Marlene Scheibl, Assistant Finance Director 
   Brandon Stanick, Assistant to the Village Administrator 
   Franco Bottalico, Village Administrative Intern (left at 6:00 PM)  
          

II. Approval of Minutes 
 

Member Ankenman to approve the minutes of the January 11, 2016 meeting as presented; 
seconded by Member Dewart and approved unanimously on a voice vote.   

 
III. Business Items 
 

1. FY2017-FY2018 General Fund Preliminary Biennial Budget Review  
 
Village Administrator Irvin presented an overview of the process and parameters used in 
developing this first biennial budget for FY2017 and FY2018.  Finance Director Griffin noted 
the exhibits attached to the General Fund Preliminary Budget memo.  Exhibit A shows the 
General Fund actual revenues for the past two fiscal years, the most current fiscal year 
estimated actual, and the budgets for FY2017 and FY2018. Exhibit B is the summary of the 
General Fund expenditures by department and category. Exhibit C shows the General fund 
balances projections through April 30, 2018. Exhibits D are the line item worksheets for the 
General Fund departments. This preliminary budget was prepared with no changes to the 
allocation of state shared revenue sources. The General Fund capital expenditure budgets 
are $1.8 and $2.2 million for FY2017 and FY2018, respectively. This represents an increase 
of 47% from FY2016 estimated actual to FY2017 and a 24% increase from the FY2017 
budget to the FY2018 budget. Capital expenditures can be reduced if changes in the state 
shared revenues cannot be absorbed by the contingency fund budgeted at $200,000. The 
General Fund is the main operating fund of the Village and other than the Water Fund, is the 
only major fund. The total proposed budget for the General Fund is $10,178,226 and 
$10,840,079 (including the $200,000 contingency) for FY2017 and FY2018, respectively. 
These expenditures are to be financed with projected revenues for $9,736,769 and 
$9,703,879, respectively. The operating expenditures and interfund transfers are $8,198,656 
and $8,426,879. The investment in capital of $1.789 and $2.219 million each year accounts 
for 18% and 20% of the General Fund budget. VA Irvin noted that this biennial budget 
challenged the staff to plan for 24 months. The operations budget was restrained in an effort 
to increase capital spending. Chairman Christensen stated he had reviewed the projected 
fund balance of 58% at the end of the two year budget period to be sure the Village would be 
on target of having a fund balance of at least 50% of the operating expenditures, which is the 
fiscal policy requirement. Chairman Christensen asked what the procedure will be next year 



Village of Lake Bluff Finance Committee Minutes – February 12, 2016 

Page 2 of 3 

to review the budget for FY2018 since this is a Biennial Budget. Director Griffin said the 
Village will still need to prepare another Budget Ordinance next year. VA Irvin added the 
FY2018 budget will be reviewed but not at the same detailed level as this year. President 
O’Hara inquired as to whether the Village had received the sales tax funds from North 
Chicago. Director Griffin replied that all past due sales tax revenue from the corridor 
agreement were recently received. Director Griffin stated the Budget Ordinance is not an 
appropriation ordinance so if there were unanticipated expenses which arise the Village 
would need to amend the Budget with a ¾ majority vote. Chairman Christensen asked about 
assumptions regarding any change in revenue received.  Director Griffin responded the 
income tax would be the tax most likely to change. The two steps the Village could take to 
respond to a drop in revenue would be 1) use the contingency fund and 2) curtail expenses. 
President O’Hara asked what could be the worst case with a drop in revenue. What if the 
state withheld all shared funds including sales tax? VA Irvin said that during the 2009 
downturn the Village curtailed capital spending and had a healthy fund balance to allow time 
to modify operations for sustainable expenditure reductions. Discussion ensued regarding the 
state of the economy. Member Dewart questioned whether the Village should have a strict 
plan of steps to take for different levels of a drop in revenues. Trustee Meyer said even when 
the federal economy stabilizes, the state still has significant financial issues to resolve. VA 
Irvin inquired if more funds should be put in the Contingency budget. Chairman Christensen 
responded there should be a specific plan for different levels of a drop in revenue such as if 
revenue drops $250,000 or $500,000, what should be done at each of those levels. VA Irvin 
said the responses would depend a lot on the timing of the drop in revenue. It currently takes 
the Village 4 months to receive sales tax information from the state. Chairman Christensen 
suggested there could be assumptions made for drops in revenue of $250,000 and $500,000 
and form a plan if such drops would occur. This could also help with setting priorities. Director 
Griffin added if the grants were deducted from the revenues, the revenue projections 
revenues are conservative. Member Dewart inquired whether the Village had received the 
funds for the Pedestrian Bridge. Director Griffin received the funds had not been received; 
those funds are on hold. Member Dewart noted the installation of automatic defibrillators in all 
Village buildings was in the FY2018 budget and should occur sooner rather than later. This 
should be moved into the FY2017 budget. Member Dewart asked what the price of an 
ambulance call is. Director Griffin responded the Village pays Lake Forest $1,350 per call 
which is the fully loaded cost less any reimbursement Lake Forest receives. VA Irvin said 
Knollwood switched its ambulance service from Lake Forest to Libertyville. He has had 
preliminary conversations with Libertyville for service to the west side. Director Griffin said the 
Village has 200-210 ambulance calls per year. Chairman Christensen noted legal fees are 
budgeted lower. Chairman Christensen asked about the status of the contract with Groot. VA 
Irvin said Groot has requested a 5 year contract but the contract is still being negotiated. 
Member Ankenman asked what the $150,000 budgeted in Finance communications was for. 
Director Griffin responded it was for the new financial software system. Discussion ensued 
regarding police overtime expenses.  
 
Exhibits were provided for the Other Governmental and Police Pension Funds Preliminary 
Biennial Budgets. Chairman Christensen asked about the amounts budgeted for the police 
pension management fees. Director Griffin said the Police Pension fund is using ASB for 
managing its stock investments.  
 
VA Irvin said staff is still looking at water loss issue. Director Griffin said she is working on an 
accounting audit to determine if this is an unbilled loss or a physical infrastructure water loss. 
There is a gap of $100k-$150k between the water the Village is buying and selling. PW 
Superintendent Terlap and Village Engineer Hansen are monitoring flow meters. The issue 
came up last year and continues into this year. VA spoke with Baxter and Woodman about a 
quote to do an analysis. Baxter and Woodman may be contacted if staff cannot isolate and 
repair the problem. Member Dewart asked about the status of the automatic water reading 
system. Director Griffin said this project will start after the budget process is complete with 
implementation anticipated this summer. The Village is considering hiring an engineering firm 
to develop the RFP and coordinate the process with the Village and the selected firm. 
 
 



Village of Lake Bluff Finance Committee Minutes – February 12, 2016 

Page 3 of 3 

IV. Next Meeting 
The next meeting will be Monday, February 22, 2016 at 6:00 PM in the Village Board Room. 
 

V. Adjournment 
Member Ankenman made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:10 PM; seconded by Member 
Dewart and all members voted aye. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 

Marlene Scheibl 
Assistant Director of Finance 


